
 

Board of Supervisors Minutes – December 5, 2016 1  

 

 WESTTOWN TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS REGULAR MEETING 
Westtown Township Municipal Building, 1039 Wilmington Pike, Westtown   

Monday, December 5, 2016 at 7:30 PM 
 

 
In attendance were: Chair Carol De Wolf, Vice Chair Tom Haws, Police Commissioner Mike Di Domenico, 
Township Manager Rob Pingar, Director of Public Works Mark Gross, Historical Commissioner Ray 
Sarnacki, and Planning Commissioner Steve Rodia.  There were 16 guests present.  
 

I. Pledge of Allegiance & Call to Order 
 

Ms. De Wolf led the Pledge of Allegiance, and called the meeting to order at 7:35 p.m. She asked if 
anyone was recording the meeting.  No one was. 
 

II. Approval of Minutes (November 21, 2016) 
 
Mr. Haws made a motion to approve the November 21, 2016 Board of Supervisors meeting minutes.  
Mr. Di Domenico seconded the motion.  There was no public comment and the minutes were 
approved.   
 

III. Workshop Meeting Summary (December 5, 2016) 
 
Ms. De Wolf stated that the Board discussed the township fee schedule for 2017, and had an 
Executive Session on the Toll Brothers application and personnel matters. 
 
There was no comment regarding the workshop. 
 

IV. Departmental Reports 
 

A. Public Works – Mark Gross 
 

Mr. Gross stated that the crew spent much of November clearing vegetation at various 
intersections to improve sight triangles, and replacing faded stop signs.   
 
In the sewer department, there was an issue with the Cobblefield pump station.  The force main 
broke in a resident’s yard.  The repair was made with the cooperation of the resident.  Mike King, 
Wastewater Operator passed all three DEP licensing tests, and is now fully licensed to operate 
the wastewater treatment plant.   
 
The final mowing and leaf mulching has been completed in the parks and open spaces.  This is 
the first year that the township did the mowing in house, and Mr. Gross reported that although it 
strained the department’s manpower at times, the end result was of better quality and saved the 
township money. 
 
Mr. Gross stated that he is waiting to take delivery on a new dump truck.  There was an issue 
with the aftermarket hydraulics that has delayed delivery.  Mr. Haws applauded Mr. Gross for 
getting such a good price on the old dump truck that was sold via municipal bid.  Ms. De Wolf 
also congratulated Mike King on his DEP certification. 
 
There were no other comments or questions. 
 

B. Historical Commission (HC) – Ray Sarnacki      
 
Mr. Sarnacki reported that approximately 30 property owners on the Historic Resources List have 
responded positively to the letter requesting access to photograph their properties. The HC will 
begin scheduling photography appointments soon.   



 

Board of Supervisors Minutes – December 5, 2016 2  

 

 
At the December 15 Planning Commission meeting at Stetson Middle School regarding the Toll 
Brothers development of Crebilly Farm, Mr. Walter will make a presentation on the historical 
aspects of Crebilly. 
 
Mr. Sarnacki stated that he is heading the research effort on the Huey ruins at the corner of 
General Howe and S. New Street.  It is possible the owner may donate a ½ acre parcel to the 
township.  The HC is preparing a proposal for an archeological exploration and conservation plan 
for this property if it is transferred to the township. The Hueys were one of the first settlers in the 
area. 
 
Mr. Sarnacki reported that Dave Walter will be the HC representative on the Veterans Memorial 
Committee being formed to considering alternative sites for the placement of the Taylor Memorial 
monuments and a monument to all Westtown veterans.  Mr. Walter is investigating what other 
townships have done with Veterans memorials. 
 
Former commissioner, Jon Hoppe, is publishing an article on the AME church cemetery on Shiloh 
Road in a historical journal. Mr. Sarnacki stated that Mr. Hoppe’s findings have identified that ten 
African American Civil War soldiers are buried there.  He will provide the article to the Board 
when it becomes available. 
 
Ms. De Wolf stated that the Board is in the process of forming the Veterans Memorial Committee, 
and was pleased to hear that Dave will be a part of that committee.   
 
There were no other comments or questions. 
 

C. Planning Commission (PC) – Steve Rodia       
 
Mr. Rodia stated that the PC met on November 16 at Stetson on the Toll Brothers application.  He 
said the meeting was very well orchestrated.  Approximately 300 people attended, providing 
feedback on a variety of issues such as traffic impact and historical preservation.   
 
Mr. Di Domenico asked about the waivers on Westtown Woods application.  Mr. Hatton did not 
have his notes on that project.  Mr. Pingar recalled that some of the waivers were technical.  One 
was related to an easement for a culvert on the new road.  He said that new plans have been 
submitted, so some of the waivers are no longer present. 
 
The PC will meet next on December 15 at Stetson Middle School for a second meeting regarding 
the Toll Brothers application. 
 
There were no other questions or comments. 
 

V. Public Comment Non Agenda Items 
 
Dr. Cecila Wright, 1151 Lake Drive, stated that she attended the Planning Commission meeting 
at Stetson regarding Crebilly.  She lives adjacent to the property.  She said it was a “slick” 
presentation, and there were no positive comments from area residents.  She said traffic is a 
serious problem.  She went out at 7:00 am and observed 560 cars go through the Rt. 926 and S. 
New Street intersection in 20 minutes.  She stated that Toll brought up an old agreement when 
addressing the traffic issue.  She asked that the document be made public.  She also wanted 
documentation on the density options allowed.  She expressed concerns about the road width 
within the development, traffic, the condition of Rt. 926, and requested that the Board tour other 
Toll Brothers projects before making a decision on this application.  Ms. De Wolf stated that some 
of her concerns were shared by the Board. 
 



 

Board of Supervisors Minutes – December 5, 2016 3  

 

Bill Vosburgh, 1151 Lake Drive, asked if there is any chance that the project would not go 
through.  Ms. De Wolf stated that she could not predict the outcome of the application. 
 
Elizabeth Roche, Kennett Township, expressed concerns about the traffic and wanted to make 
the point to the Board that the Toll project impacts non-residents. 
 
Vince Moro, 158 McFaddin Road, Chadds Ford, cited the township code which states that the 
bonus density options and associated costs of improvements in exchange for greater density are 
supposed to have been submitted at the time of the conditional use application.  Ms. De Wolf 
stated that the township will ask their solicitor and get back to Mr. Moro.  He replied that he could 
be contacted at info@neighborsforcrebilly.org.  
 
There was no other public comment. 
 

VI. Old Business    
 
A. Rustin Residential - Escrow Release 4 

 
In a letter dated December 1, 2016, township engineer McCormick Taylor recommended Escrow 
Release No. 4 in the amount of $501,145.53.  Mr. Haws made a motion to approve this release 
from the financial security escrow account for the Rustin Residential development.  Mr. Di 
Domenico seconded the motion.  There was no public comment and the motion was approved. 
 

VII. New Business 
 

There was none. 
 

VIII. Announcements 
 
Ms. De Wolf made the following announcements: 
 

1. There will be a special Planning Commission meeting on the Toll Brothers/Crebilly 
Conditional Use Application on Thursday, December 15, 6:30 p.m. at Stetson Middle School 
auditorium.  

2. The Board of Supervisors is seeking residents to be part of a committee to develop a plan for 
a Westtown Veterans Memorial.  The memorial will include the Taylor Family Revolutionary 
War Memorial Markers and another monument in a formal setting to recognize all Westtown 
veterans of U.S. armed forces.  The committee will consist of one member from the Historical 
Commission, Parks & Recreation Commission, and Friends of Oakbourne, and two township 
residents. 

3. The Westtown Township Historical Commission and Parks & Recreation Commission have 
appointments expiring 12/31/16.  Interested Westtown residents should send their resume 
and letter of interest to Township Manager, Rob Pingar. 

IX. Public Comment on All Topics 
 

Patrick McDonough, 7 Oakbourne Road, stated that he is one of the founding members of the 
Historical Commission (HC).  He stated that the vacancy on the HC just announced has been created 
by the Board’s refusal to reappoint him.  Three other commissioner’s appointments also expire at the 
end of the year, yet his is the only reappointment being denied.  He read an email from Rob Pingar, 
which said he was not reappointed because he allegedly used his position on the commission for his 
personal agenda.  He disputed this allegation, stating that he has given over $30,000 in pro bono 
work, assisting Mark Gross with the renovation of the water tower and with developing a restoration 
and preservation plan for the Oakbourne Mansion.  He stated he also provided about 40 hours 
($7500) in pro bono service in creating presentation boards and pamphlets for the Historical 
Preservation awards presented at Westtown Day in September.   

mailto:info@neighborsforcrebilly.org


 

Board of Supervisors Minutes – December 5, 2016 4  

 

 
Ms. De Wolf acknowledged that Mr. McDonough’s work over the past 15 years has benefited the 
township, and although she did not question his integrity, she said there were reasons for the Board’s 
decision not to reappoint him.  First, was the issue about delinquency in municipal bills.  She 
acknowledged that Mr. McDonough has satisfied his financial obligations, but she added that he has 
also been confrontational with the Board.  Mr. McDonough said he could not recall any confrontations 
with the Board.  Mr. Haws stated that leading up to Westtown Day, Mr. McDonough made repeated 
requests for the water tower to be opened for public tours, despite being told by the Board that it was 
deemed unsafe by Mr. Gross, Director of Public Works, and was a liability concern.  Mr. Haws stated 
that the matter was closed.  Ms. De Wolf agreed that it was inappropriate to discuss the matter any 
further in a public forum, and offered to meet with Mr. McDonough privately.   
 
Given the Board’s decision, Mr. McDonough stated that he was resigning from the Historical 
Commission. He said he is passionate about historical preservation and will continue to stay involved.  
Ms. De Wolf thanked Mr. McDonough for making a difference to the township. 
  
Mr. Sarnacki stated that although he has only been a member of the HC for 3 months, he felt that the 
Board was making a mistake by not reappointing Mr. McDonough.  He said Pat is a valuable 
contributor to the commission, and the remaining members of the HC are unhappy with the decision.  
 
There were no other comments. 

 
X. Payment of Bills 

 
Mr. Haws made a motion to approve General Fund bills in the amount of $103,956.27, and 
Wastewater Fund bills in the amount of $71,704.49, for a grand total of $175,660.76.  The motion was 
seconded by Mr. Di Domenico.  There was no public comment and the check registers were 
approved. 
 

XI. Adjournment 
 

Ms. De Wolf stated that the Board would continue their Executive Session after the meeting.  Mr. 
Haws made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Mr. Di Domenico.  The meeting adjourned 
at 8:25 p.m.   
 
 

Respectfully submitted,  
 
Robert Pingar 
Township Manager 
 
 
 


